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Questions & Answers 

 
 
1. Question A.  C.4.9.2 Program Quality Assurance Manager (QAM) and Attachment JM.3: Per Amendment 
0002, we note that the Section C requirements for the QAM have been consolidated (no longer differentiated 
between environmental and munitions response) and that there are still two resume forms for QAM. Please confirm 
that the QAM position requirements in C.4.9.2 may be filled by two separate people and that neither person is 
required to have all the requirements. For example, one person meets requirements a, b, and c and another person 
meets requirements d and e. 
 
 Response:  See Section C 4.9.2 Program Quality Assurance Manager.  “The QAM position(s) may be held by 
one person, or may be divided by two individuals.”  The QAM minimum qualifications may be met by one (1) 
individual or two (2).  JM.3 Program Quality Assurance Manager has been revised for the Contractor’s ease of use.  
It will be reviewed in totality in accordance with the minimum qualifications provided in Section C 4.9.2.   
 
 Question B.  Amendment 0002, Response to Questions 6C and 15D, PPQs: NAVFAC’s and USACE’s intent in 
developing Form PPQ-0 was to reduce the burden on government agencies so they would not have to complete 
multiple PPQs for the same project for individual solicitations. The response to questions 6C and 15D is contrary to 
this purpose, and will require government clients, including NAVFAC personnel, to commit their valuable time to 
complete this form again. Please reconsider requiring a new PPQ to be completed if a NAVFAC/USACE Form 
PPQ-0 has been previously completed and is available to submit with our proposal. 
 
 Response:  Comment acknowledged.  Submit a completed CPARS or new PPQ.   
 
 Question C.  Amendment 0002, Response to Questions 26E and 27A, and Attachments JL.7 and JL.7A: 
Although the government is not grouping the EMT and UXO Dive Technicians under SCA/DBA wage categories in 
the forms, our company considers these positions to be subject to wage determinations. As such, under our DCAA-
approved accounting methodology, our SCA/DBA indirect rate markups apply (not Home or Field). Attachment 
JL.7 Note 2 states that we may not make structural changes, or change the hours on this form; however, Note 5 
states that Offeror should add or delete additional indirect costs in accordance with established accounting system. 
As long as the number of hours remain the same, may we move the Labor Hours and Costs from one column to 
another to comply with our DCAA methodology?  For example, for the Base Year, the 473 hours for UXO Dive 
Technician I would be moved from the “Field” column to the “DBA” column. This would simplify the application 
of indirect rates in the form.  
 
 Response:  No, the offerors shall not make changes to the labor hours and costs on Attachment JL.7.  The 
Emergency Medical Technician – Paramedic and UXO Dive Technician are not considered as SCA/DBA labor 
categories.   
 
 Question D.  Amendment 0002, Response to Question 22 RFP Instructions and Section L, FAR 52.215-1: Per 
the answer to the second question under #22, we may not apply headers and footers to the Forms pages. FAR 
52.215-1 is incorporated by reference in Section L and Standard Form 33; therefore, please confirm that per 
paragraph (e)(2) of this clause, we may add the legend to each page of our proposal for which we wish to restrict 
disclosure and use of data except for evaluation purposes, including the Forms. 
 
 Response:  Yes, the offerors may add the legend in accordance with FAR provision 52.215-1, (e) (2). 
 
2.  Question A.  Amendment 2 revised paragraph 4.9.1, for the Program Manager qualifications by decreasing the 
qualification requirements. The requirements changed from requiring a professional license in physical sciences and 
registration as professional engineer or geologist in at least one state of the United States; or a graduate degree in the 
business/physical science field to “professional licensing or professional registration is desired”. The work under 
this contract is highly specialized and performed at a higher risk to the Government and as such, will the 
Government consider a professional license, professional registration and/or advanced degree more favorable than 
just an undergraduate degree with no license or professional registration? 
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 Response:  Section C 4.9.1 Program Manager provides the minimum qualifications for the Program Manager.  
In accordance with Section C 4.9.1, part c. “Professional licensing or professional registration is desired.”   
 
 Question B.  Amendment 2 revised paragraph 4.9.1, for the Program Manager qualifications by decreasing the 
qualification requirements. The requirements changed from requiring a professional license in physical sciences and 
registration as professional engineer or geologist in at least one state of the United States; or a graduate degree in the 
business/physical science field to “professional licensing or professional registration is desired”. The work under 
this contract is highly specialized and performed at a higher risk to the Government and as such, as well as being 
aligned with industry standard, will the Government require additional years of experience if the Program Manager 
does not have a Professional license or registration? (For instance, 15 years of experience versus 10). 
 
 Response:  Section C 4.9.1. Program Manager provides the minimum qualifications for the Program Manager.  
Part b provides the minimum years of experience; part c states, “Professional licensing or professional registration is 
desired.”  
 
  Question C.  Amendment 2 revised paragraph 4.9.3, and the Program Geophysicist qualifications to allow 
him/her to be employed by a subcontractor with a teaming agreement. This position requires involvement in the 
Offeror’s participation in Department of Defense Advanced Geophysical Classification Accreditation Program and 
performance of Advanced Geophysical Classification as required by the Solicitation in Section 2.2 paragraph 4 and 
Section 4.9.3 paragraph 1.  Will the Government consider providing this position as an employee of the Offeror as 
more favorable than providing this position through a subcontractor? 
 
 Response:  Section C 4.9.3 Program Geophysicist provides the following, “The Contractor shall designate a 
Senior Geophysicist who is desired to be employed by the prime contractor, but may be employed by a 
subcontractor with teaming agreement.”   
 
 Question D.  Amendment 2 revised paragraph 4.9.4, and the qualifications for the Project Manager by 
decreasing the qualification requirements. The requirements changed from requiring a professional registration, 
where applicable to “professional licensing or professional registration is desired”. The work under this contract is 
highly specialized and performed at a higher risk to the Government and as such, will the Government consider a 
professional license, professional registration and/or advanced degree more favorable than just an undergraduate 
degree with no license or professional registration? 
 
 Response:  Section C 4.9.4 Project Manager provides the minimum qualifications for the Project Manager.  See 
part a. for the minimum education requirement.  Part b states, “Professional licensing or professional registration is 
desired.”  
 
 Question E.  Amendment 2 revised paragraph 4.9.4, Project Manager qualifications by decreasing the 
requirements. The requirements changed from requiring a “professional registration, where applicable” to 
“professional licensing or professional registration is desired”.  The work under this contract is highly specialized 
and performed at a higher risk to the Government and as such, as well as being aligned with industry standard. Will 
the Government require additional years of experience if the Project Manager does not have a Professional license or 
registration (For instance, 10 years of experience versus six)? 
 
 Response:  Section C 4.9.4 Project Manager provides the minimum qualifications for the Project Manager.  See 
part a. and c. for the minimum education and experience requirements.  Part b states, “Professional licensing or 
professional registration is desired.” 
 
 Question F.  Amendment 2 RFI responses state that the Excel sheets for all JL forms are provided on the NECO 
website.  However, only JL.1, JL.1A and JL.7 and JL.7A are provided in Excel format.  Will the Government please 
provide all pricing forms in Excel format including JL.3 and JL.4? 
 
 Response:   Not all JL forms are in Excel format.  The offerors shall use the native files provided in the website 
https://www.neco.navy.mil.  JL.3 and JL.4 will not be provided in Excel format. 
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 Question G.  RFI 22 from Amendment 2 was responded to indicating that the Government does not want us to 
provide headers and footers to the Forms pages in order to identify the solicitation name and number as well as the 
Volume, Section, Factor or Tab and the page number. 
 
    a.  We recommend allowing this in order to make it easier for the Government to evaluate the proposals, 
and avoid confusion if the proposal pages are separated from the binder during evaluation. We recommend each 
page of the proposal to have some sort of identifier, including the page number offeror’s identification. This can be 
performed without modifying the size or content of the government’s forms. 
 
    Response:  The offerors may include the headers and footers necessary to prepare the table of contents.   
   
   b.  Additionally, how can the offeror provide a comprehensive table of contents, which is a submission 
requirement, without allowing us to include headers/footers with page numbers and section identifiers? 
 
   Response:  The offerors may include the headers and footers necessary to prepare the table of contents.   
 
 Question H.  Amendment 2, RFI response 7) h) A project involved more than one of the five types of work as 
defined in paragraph M6,3),b.ii.(1), may include the same project on the two different forms (e.g., a MRP 
Remedial/Removal Action also involved a Land Geophysical Survey). Would it result in a more favorable 
evaluation to show depth and breadth of experience by submitting six different projects rather than utilizing the 
same project for multiple criteria? 
 
 Response:  See Section M6,3),b) ii.(1) and JM.1 for corporate experience requirements.   
 
 Question I.  The revised forms for the JM.1, JM.2 and JM.3 Attachments provide the instructions on a separate 
sheet of paper. Are we to provide these instructions within the proposal?  If so, please advise on the following: 
 
   a.  Please confirm if the instruction sheet counts towards the page count. 
 
   Response:  JM.1, JM.2, and JM.3 were revised to provide the Offerors maximum space to complete the 
forms.  Section M6,3),b), ii), (1) pertaining to JM.1 states, “The Offeror shall submit no more than one (1) page 
double-sided per project.”  Form JM.2 states, “This page does not count toward the page count described in 
M6,3)b)ii)(2).”  Section M6,3)b)ii(3) pertaining to JM.3 states, “The Offeror shall not submit more than three (3) 
pages single-sided per person for each Key Personnel position.”  The instruction sheet is not counted toward the 
page count.   
 
   b.  Please advise if the instructions shall be provided on their own page as revised within Amendment 2. 
 
   Response:  The instruction sheet shall be provided as its own page.   
 
3.  Reference:  Native Form JM.1 
 
 Question:  Given the narrow right margin on the JM.1 forms, may we print these two-page projects single-sided 
so the hole punches for the binders will not obscure text on the second pages? 
 
 Response:  No.  If necessary, the proposal will be verified with electronic copy of the proposal.   
 
4.   Question A.    Section C, item 4.9.2 (page 24 of 174) states “The QAM position(s) may be held by one person, 
or may be divided by two individuals.” Later in this same subsection, the statement is repeated, but struck-through. 
Please confirm whether the Navy wants only one person proposed to perform the function of the QAM, or if two 
persons may be proposed. Also, please confirm that if two persons are proposed to perform this function the 
minimum qualifications for the two are identical (as shown on the Attachment JM.3 resume template.) 
 
 Response:  The second statement was deleted to eliminate the redundancy since it was already stated that “The 
QAM position(s) may be held by one person, or may be divided by two individuals.”  The QAM minimum 
qualifications may be met by one (1) individual or two (2).  JM.3 Program Quality Assurance Manager has been 
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revised for the Contractor’s ease of use.  It will be reviewed in totality in accordance with the minimum 
qualifications provided in Section C 4.9.2.   
  
 
 Question B.    In the original solicitation, the minimum qualifications for Program QAM 1 (Munitions Response 
and Range Sustainment Work) did not include a requirement for an undergraduate degree.  As the minimum 
qualifications for this position have been revised by Amendment 0002, will the Navy consider allowing extensive 
relevant experience (20+ years) as a substitute for an undergraduate degree? 
 
 Response:  See Section C 4.9.2 Program Quality Assurance Manager.  “The QAM position(s) may be held by 
one person, or may be divided by two individuals.”  The QAM minimum qualifications may be met by one (1) 
individual or two (2).  JM.3 Program Quality Assurance Manager has been revised for the Contractor’s ease of use.  
It will be reviewed in totality in accordance with the minimum qualifications provided in Section C 4.9.2.   
 
  Question C.  Please respond to the following questions regarding the Specialized Recent Project/Contract 
Experience Information required in Attachment JM.1: 
 
  (1) Row 3, Block 1 asks for “JV/Prime/Key Sub Names:” Should the response include the names of the JV 
(if appropriate), Prime Contractor, and all Key Subcontractors, or only those firms that are on the Offeror’s current 
team? 
 
  Response:  Response to include names of the JV, Prime Contractor, and all Key Subcontractors that 
performed work on the project /contract.  
 
  (2)   Row 5, Block 1 asks for “% of Project Self-performed:” Should the response include the name and % of 
cost performed by the Prime Contractor, the names and % of cost performed by each individual Key Subcontractor, 
and the names and % of cost performed by each individual Subcontractor? Or, should the firms named in response 
to this question be only those firms that are on the Offeror’s current team? 
 
  Response:  Response to include the name and % of cost performed by the JV, Prime Contractor, and all Key 
Subcontractors that performed work on the project /contract.  
 
  Question D.  Page 129 Question B states “The offerors shall not modify the government provided forms for the 
cost proposal”.  In addition page 145 at the top when asked “may we apply our own headers and footers to the 
forms” the answer was “No”.  Please verify headers and footers including proprietary notice and page numbers may 
not be added to the pricing attachments JL.1 – JL.7. 
 
 Response:  The offer may add the legend in accordance with FAR provision 52.215-1, (e) (2).  In addition, the 
offerors may include the headers and footers necessary to prepare the table of contents.  Clarification: per Section L, 
L1, 2. b, the offerors are allowed to add/delete certain cost information to reflect their accounting system.     
 
 
5. Question A.  Please clarify which are the desired UXO Diver rates for use in populating Attachment JL.1A, 
Cost Reimbursable Direct Labor Hourly Ceiling Rate Build-up Form.  Attachment JH-1, WD 05-2153 and 
attachment JH3, WD 05-2147 SCA rates does not have UXO Diver as a category.  Attachment JH.2, General 
Decision Number HT160001 has diver rates but as a construction category.  There is a SCA schedule, WD 04-0047, 
Diver Services, was not included in the solicitation documents but has diving categories’ specifically; however, this 
schedule does not have specific UXO specific level rates as requested.  Please advise what rate should be applied to 
allow all contractors to understand better the intent of these specialty labor categories. 
 
 Response:  The Offerors shall not use the SCA or DBA rates for UXO Divers.  UXO Divers are specialty UXO 
personnel.  If the offeror currently does not employ UXO Divers, it shall propose a market rate appropriate for 
qualification described in Section C, Paragraph 4.10.   
 
 
 Question B.  Will JL.2, JL.3, and JL.4 be provided in Excel format? 
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Response:   Excel files will not be provided.  The offerors shall use the native files (MS Word) provided in the 

website https://www.neco.navy.mil. 
 

6.  The revisions in Amendment 2 for the Program Quality Assurance Manager seem to be conflicting.  The listing 
under section 4.8.1 was made plural which suggests that the position may be divided by two individuals.   
Conversely, the statement that the Program QAM position may be divided by two individuals was deleted in section 
4.9.2.  The revised resume templates (Attachment JM.3) still include templates for two resumes for the Program 
QAM position.  Can the Program QAM position be divided between two individuals?  And if so, can the 
undergraduate degree and certification (CQM/CQE/CQA) qualifications be held by one individual qualifications 
while the UXOQC or UXOQC oversight qualifications be held by the second individual as was previously indicated 
before the Amendment 2 revisions? 
 
 Response:  See Section C 4.9.2 Program Quality Assurance Manager.  “The QAM position(s) may be held by 
one person, or may be divided by two individuals.”  The QAM minimum qualifications may be met by one (1) 
individual or two (2).  JM.3 Program Quality Assurance Manager has been revised for the Contractor’s ease of use.  
It will be reviewed in totality in accordance with the minimum qualifications provided in Section C 4.9.2.   
 
 
7.  Question A.  PDF Page 145 provides a response that offerors will not be permitted to apply headers and footers 
to identify the solicitation, volume, section factor or tab, and page numbers.  Since it is required that all joint venture 
entities provide cost proposal forms and supporting documentation, we respectfully ask that you reconsider allowing 
pagination to the proposal. Please also allow offerors to add company name in the footer for cost center identifiers 
on the forms.  Without page numbering and company identifiers it will be difficult to navigate the multiple forms 
that are submitted for each cost center and categorize each company for each required form.  It will also be difficult 
to link the Table of Contents to the pages without page numbering. 
 
 Response:  The offerors may include the headers and footers necessary to prepare the table of contents.   
  
Question B.  Reference: Page 25, Section 4.9.4, Project Manager. “Minimum (3) three personnel” and page 26, 
Section 4.9.5, Senior UXO Supervisors. “Minimum (2) two personnel…”  The term “minimum” implies that more 
than 3 Project Managers resumes and 2 SUXOS resumes are permitted.  Please confirm if offeror can submit more 
than 3 project managers resumes and more than 2 SUXOS resumes. 
 
 Response:  No.  See Section C 4.8.2.  Submit Key Personnel in accordance with JM.3.   
 


